          1

          2  CITY COUNCIL

          3

             CITY OF NEW YORK

          4

             -------------------------------x

          5

             THE TRANSCRIPT OF THE MINUTES

          6

                       of the

          7

             COMMITTEE ON LAND USE

          8

             -------------------------------x

          9

         10                 July 24, 2007

                            Start:  10:35 a.m.

         11                 Recess: 11:25 a.m.

         12                 City Hall

                            Committee Room

         13                 New York, New York

         14

                  B E F O R E:

         15

                         MELINDA KATZ

         16                                Chairperson,

         17

                         COUNCIL MEMBERS:   Joel Rivera

         18                                 Tony Avella

                                            Maria Baez

         19                                 Charles Barron

                                            Leroy Comrie

         20                                 Simcha Felder

         21

         22

         23

         24       LEGAL-EASE COURT REPORTING SERVICES, INC.

                         17 Battery Place -  Suite 1308

         25              New York, New York 10004

                              (800) 756-3410

                                                            2

          1

          2  A P P E A R A N C E S

          3

             COUNCIL MEMBERS:

          4

             Eric Gioia

          5  Robert Jackson

             John Liu

          6  Miguel Martinez

             Michael McMahon

          7  Larry Seabrook

             Helen Sears

          8  Kendall Stewart

             Maria del Carmen Arroyo

          9  Inez Dickens

             Daniel Garodnick

         10  Jessica Lappin

             Rosie Mendez

         11  Vincent Ignizio

         12

         13

         14

         15

         16

         17

         18

         19

         20

         21

         22

         23

         24

         25

                                                            3

          1

          2  A P P E A R A N C E S (CONTINUED)

          3

             Eliott Socci

          4  President

             Douglaston Civic Association

          5

             Ed Jaworski

          6  Executive Vice President

             Madison-Marine-Homecrest Civic Association

          7

             Andrew Berman

          8  Executive Director

             Greenwich Village Society for Historic Preservation

          9

             Joseph Hellmann

         10  Secretary, Douglaston Civic Association

             Community Board No. 11

         11

             Daniel McCalla

         12  Four Borough Neighborhood Preservation Alliance

             Clermont Green Avenue Block Association

         13

             Walter Mugdan

         14  President

             Westmoreland Association, Inc.

         15

         16

         17

         18

         19

         20

         21

         22

         23

         24

         25

                                                            4

          1  COMMITTEE ON LAND USE

          2                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: Good morning,

          3  everyone. This is the Land Use Committee meeting on

          4  July 23rd (sic). We have several items that have

          5  been sent up from the Subcommittees. We also have a

          6  hearing that we will be holding after we vote.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER BARRON: Today is the

          8  24th.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: Today is the 24th?

         10  I stand corrected by Councilman Barron. Let's not

         11  get used to that. July 24th. Thank you.

         12                 I'm going to go through the agenda.

         13  We will open it up for discussion, then we will

         14  vote, and then we will hold a hearing. And Education

         15  is happening at the same time, so if we can please

         16  ask -- actually, let's go through the agenda first.

         17  They have the Commissioner there.

         18                 Preconsidered Land Use AM&G

         19  Waterproofing. C060545 ZMK. It's an amendment to the

         20  zoning map. It's to facilitate the construction of a

         21  vehicle maintenance facility for an existing

         22  business that is on the site. That is in Council

         23  Member Mealy's district.

         24                 Council Member Gentile and Gonzalez's

         25  district in Dyker Heights and Fort Hamilton. It is
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          2  an amendment to the zoning map to preserve the

          3  existing built form and to allow greater density in

          4  the appropriate areas.

          5                 Council Member Seabrook and Koppell's

          6  district. It is Wakefield/Eastchester Rezoning. It

          7  is also an amendment to the zoning map, also to

          8  preserve the existing built form and to allow for

          9  some greater density.

         10                 Council Member James's district and

         11  Council Member Vann's district. It is an amendment

         12  to the zoning map. It is modified to remove an area

         13  adjacent to Pratt Institute. It was a rezoning in

         14  the Fort Greene and Clinton Hill area. That was a

         15  zoning map change and the zoning text amendment

         16  modified to reflect the zoning map amendment in

         17  Council Member Vann and Council Member James's

         18  district.

         19                 Neponsit Health Center. This is a

         20  motion to file. It was withdrawn by HHC and it is in

         21  Council Member Addabbo's district.

         22                 In Crown Heights North Historic

         23  District, it is a historic district designation, in

         24  Council Member Vann's district and James's district.

         25                 Third-party transfer, HPD application
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          2  for approval for the transfer. It was already heard

          3  in the Buildings Committee, I assume. HPD

          4  application for the next one is Third-party

          5  transfers, No. 50 In Rem. It is in Council Member --

          6  it's various districts in Brooklyn.

          7                 LU No. 470 is a motion to disapprove.

          8  It is an HPD application which is currently in

          9  litigation. It is a transfer of ownership of a

         10  project with subsidized units. This is requesting

         11  series of approvals to allow a change of ownership

         12  at Maria Lopez Plaza in Council Member Arroyo's

         13  district. After a public hearing at the Planning

         14  Subcommittee, during which community board residents

         15  and people familiar with the application spoke in

         16  opposition, the Subcommittee voted to disapprove.

         17  So, an aye vote is appropriate for disapproval.

         18                 LU No. 475 is an amendment to the

         19  Douglaston Hill rezoning in Council Member Avella's

         20  district. It is an amendment to historic district.

         21                 Sidewalk cafe in the Speaker's

         22  district. They have come to an agreement and it is

         23  now a motion to approve.

         24                 LU No. 482 is the Atlantic Avenue

         25  Extension. It's the mapping action to create public
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          2  open space, and improve the access to Jamaica in

          3  Council Member Comrie's district. And Council Member

          4  Comrie and Gennaro's area, mapping action to allow

          5  improvement of the area near the Long Island

          6  Railroad.

          7                 A bunch of UDAAPs. LU No. 424 in

          8  Council Member Arroyo's district. 438 in Council

          9  Member Dilan's district. 442 in Council Member

         10  Mealy's district. Motion to file is 444 in Council

         11  Member Ignizio's district. In Council Member

         12  Jackson's district, 521 West 135th Street. In

         13  Council Member Stewart, 1243 Troy Avenue. Council

         14  Member Dilan's district, 45 Euclid Avenue. Council

         15  Member Seabrook's district, 3537 Barnes Avenue and

         16  960 East 230th Street.

         17                 Council Member Comrie has a lot of

         18  them going on there. So, I will read the ULURP No.,

         19  which is 20075593 HAQ, to make sure we have the

         20  right one. And in Council Member McMahon's district,

         21  the same, 20075594 HAR.

         22                 Very lengthy agenda. The

         23  Subcommittees were very hard at work over the last

         24  few weeks.

         25                 Any questions or comments? Council
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          2  Member Avella.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER LAPPIN: Madam Chair --

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER AVELLA: I just want to

          5  --

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER LAPPIN: -- If I may?

          7  Oh, sorry. Go ahead.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER AVELLA: I just want to

          9  take a quick moment to thank the Subcommittee Chair,

         10  Jessica Lappin, for her help on passing Land Use No.

         11  475, the amendment to the Douglaston Hill Historic

         12  District, and those members on the Committee that

         13  voted for it. This is an important, I shouldn't say

         14  addition, but an amendment to the Douglaston Hill

         15  Historic District, and I appreciate the

         16  Subcommittee's support, the Chair's support, and I

         17  would appreciate my colleagues' support today.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: Council Member

         19  Lappin.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER LAPPIN: I just wanted

         21  to congratulate, in particular, Council Members Vann

         22  and James. The Crown Heights Historic District is an

         23  exciting and significant move forward to protect and

         24  preserve this part of Brooklyn. It's really a

         25  beautiful and remarkably intact group of buildings
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          2  within Crown Heights North and will hopefully be one

          3  of multiple phases and the community has done a

          4  fantastic job of working together bringing everybody

          5  on board, including the local churches, going

          6  door-to-door, really organizing and the local

          7  Council members did a great job of bringing this to

          8  us without much controversy. So, I just wanted to

          9  congratulate them and say that I am very proud to be

         10  supporting that district today.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: Any other comments?

         12                 Council Member Arroyo.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER DEL CARMEN ARROYO:

         14  Thank you, Madam Chair. Just a moment to say thank

         15  you to the Subcommittee on Planning and Dispositions

         16  for their attention and indulgence during the

         17  hearing where the Maria Lopez Plaza, I believe is LU

         18  470, and the Land Use staff and counsel who have

         19  been so helpful in making sure that we document the

         20  record on a case that is in litigation. That hearing

         21  brought to light the things that I already knew, but

         22  would want to thank again the members of that

         23  Committee.

         24                 There was significant concerning

         25  testimony provided that helped to support my
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          2  position to disapprove this application for a

          3  proposed owner who represents everything that we as

          4  a Council try to protect in our City, and that is

          5  affordable housing. So, I want to thank you all for

          6  your support and hope that the rest of the Committee

          7  will support that, as well. Thank you.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: Thank you. Anybody

          9  else? I'm sorry. Councilman Comrie, I'm sorry.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: Thank you,

         11  Madam Chair. I just want to urge the Committee to

         12  vote for LU 482 and 483, the Atlantic Avenue

         13  Extension and Station Plaza.

         14                 This affects the Long Island Railroad

         15  Station, and the Sutphin Boulevard Archer Avenue

         16  intersection, which is one of the top 20 worst

         17  traffic locations in the City. Literally if you were

         18  a commuter yesterday and you're exiting the subway

         19  right now at Sutphin and Archer Avenue, you'd get

         20  wet, because you're literally less than five feet

         21  from the curb. Due to the high volume of traffic,

         22  there are over 30 bus lines that move in through

         23  that area in the evening, and it's just a horrible

         24  situation that needed to be corrected. I want to

         25  commend the Mayor's Office, EDC, I want to commend
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          2  my community board, which voted for it

          3  overwhelmingly. I want to thank Council Member

          4  Garodnick, who had an extensive hearing and met with

          5  all of the affected parties, the major affected

          6  parties, that we're still working on trying to

          7  resolve all their issues, and they were able to vett

          8  all their issues clearly and concisely yesterday,

          9  and we pledged to help them. And I want to thank the

         10  Land Use Chair, Melinda Katz, for meeting with all

         11  the parties also. This was a three-year project that

         12  has been fully vetted. They had actually committee,

         13  local committee advisory groups that sat and looked

         14  at the intersection. If anybody that has taken the

         15  Long Island Railroad and gotten off at Sutphin

         16  Boulevard and tried to walk in the streets, you will

         17  understand quickly, the streets, some sections were

         18  not as wide as this table, and it needed to be

         19  corrected to ensure that we had safe pedestrian

         20  access.

         21                 So, I urge all the members to vote

         22  aye on 482 and 483. I want to thank all that were

         23  involved in bringing this to this point today.

         24                 Thank you.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: Thank you. My
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          2  understanding is that there is still work going on

          3  for an agreement. And we look forward to finding out

          4  what the end result of that is.

          5                 Okay, please call the roll.

          6                 COUNCIL CLERK: Council Member Katz.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: Aye on all.

          8                 COUNCIL CLERK: Rivera.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER RIVERA: I vote aye.

         10                 COUNCIL CLERK: Avella.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER AVELLA: Aye.

         12                 COUNCIL CLERK: Baez.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER BAEZ: Aye.

         14                 COUNCIL CLERK: Barron.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER BARRON: May I be

         16  excused to explain my vote?

         17                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: Yes.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER BARRON: I vote no on

         19  LU 475. I do believe in that particular situation,

         20  the alterations of this particular house, the entire

         21  roof was changed, all the windows were changed, the

         22  house itself is larger now than all of the other

         23  houses in the area, and the family was agreeing to

         24  come up with some kind of compromise and they said

         25  that they will give jurisdiction up of the house if
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          2  they needed that to connect other homes to the

          3  historical district, and I thought that that was a

          4  reasonable compromise, if they could just keep the

          5  two or three parcels in the lot that was not

          6  connected -- or was parceled out anyway, and they

          7  would turn that into a garage or something. I just

          8  think they compromised enough on that issue to allow

          9  for historical preservation to exist, and the right

         10  of home ownership to have a say so in this, as well.

         11                 So, I vote no on that item, and aye

         12  on all the rest.

         13                 COUNCIL CLERK: Comrie.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: No on 475; aye

         15  on the rest.

         16                 COUNCIL CLERK: Gioia.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER GIOIA: I vote yes.

         18                 COUNCIL CLERK: Liu.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER LIU: Yes.

         20                 COUNCIL CLERK: Martinez.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARTINEZ: Madam Public

         22  -- Public Advocate.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: Not me.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARTINEZ: Madam Chair,

         25  may I be excused to explain my vote?
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: Sure, Council

          3  Member Jones, be my guest.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARTINEZ: I will be

          5  voting aye on all the items before us, but I,

          6  however, wanted just to express that on the

          7  Douglaston issue, after the hearings that were

          8  conducted at the Landmark Committee, I do have some

          9  concerns in terms of the issues that were raised

         10  having to do with the rights of ownership for

         11  residents in the City of New York, particularly when

         12  issues arise of landmarking. However, on this

         13  particular case I just want to make clear that from

         14  the testimony and from the hearings, this is not

         15  something that happened overnight, and this is an

         16  ongoing effort of several years by community

         17  residents and by the Council member that represents

         18  the district, and I do understand and identify with

         19  some of the concern that Council Member Barron

         20  brought up, and I also saw the pictures of the

         21  house. However, this was an ongoing process of many

         22  months and years that was going on and organizing by

         23  that particular community. And having said that, I

         24  do share some of the concerns brought up by both

         25  Council Member Barron and Comrie having to do with
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          2  the right of ownership. But, however, I will vote

          3  aye on the fact that there was not an ongoing

          4  process, not a new process, not an overnight process

          5  but several years of discussion and planning by the

          6  community and the Council Member that represent the

          7  area. So, I'll be voting aye.

          8                 COUNCIL CLERK: McMahon.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER McMAHON: Aye on all.

         10                 COUNCIL CLERK: Seabrook.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEABROOK: Aye on all.

         12                 COUNCIL CLERK: Arroyo.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER DEL CARMEN ARROYO: Aye

         14  on all.

         15                 COUNCIL CLERK: Dickens.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER DICKENS: Aye on all.

         17                 COUNCIL CLERK: Garodnick.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER GARODNICK: Aye.

         19                 COUNCIL CLERK: Lappin.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER LAPPIN: Aye on all.

         21                 COUNCIL CLERK: Ignizio.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER IGNIZIO: No on 475 and

         23  483; aye on all others.

         24                 COUNCIL CLERK: Stewart.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART: Aye.
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          2                 COUNCIL CLERK: Felder.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER FELDER: Yes.

          4                 COUNCIL CLERK: By a vote of 18 in the

          5  affirmative, zero in the negative, none abstentions,

          6  all items are adopted, with the exceptions of LU

          7  475, which is adopted by a vote of 15 in the

          8  affirmative, three in the negative, no abstentions;

          9  and LU 483, which is adopted by a vote of 17 in the

         10  affirmative, one in the negative and zero

         11  abstentions.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: Okay, we're going

         13  to get the folks from the Education Committee, but

         14  we're also going to leave the vote open til the end

         15  of the hearing. There is no reason to close it.

         16                 If we can have some order in the

         17  room? We do have a public hearing right now. If we

         18  can get some order in the room, we do have a public

         19  hearing right now. So, if you have a conversation,

         20  please take it outside.

         21                 COUNCIL CLERK: Council Member

         22  Jackson.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON: I vote aye on

         24  all.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: Okay, we're going
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          2  to start the public hearing now on Bill No. 261. It

          3  is a bill which would amend the Charter of the City

          4  of New York in relation to appealing decisions of

          5  the BSA, granted and denied variances or special

          6  permits pursuant to the zoning resolution of the

          7  City of New York. And in order to explain the bill

          8  and start the process, I would like to call on

          9  Council Member Avella, who is the sponsor of the

         10  legislation.

         11                 I'm sorry, first of all, just

         12  clean-up. Council Member Mendez, how do you vote on

         13  the agenda?

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER MENDEZ: Aye on all.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: Thank you very

         16  much.

         17                 Council Member Avella.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER AVELLA: Thank you,

         19  Madam Chair. Before I sort of go into the bill

         20  itself, I should remind my colleagues that the

         21  reason we're having this public hearing is I used

         22  the little known rule within the Council rules that

         23  allow a sponsor of the bill to call it up.

         24                 Intro. 261 is a Council review of BSA

         25  variance and special permit decisions. This local
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          2  law will amend the Charter of the City of New York

          3  in relation to appealing decisions of the Board of

          4  Standards and Appeals, granting or denying variances

          5  or special permits pursuant to the zoning resolution

          6  of the City of New York.

          7                 BSA is composed of five

          8  Commissioners, each appointed by the Mayor to serve

          9  a six-year term. Unfortunately, BSA continues to

         10  grant variances and special permits in direct

         11  contravention to publicly stated recommendations of

         12  community boards, civic groups and elected

         13  officials.

         14                 It has become an entity unto itself

         15  which acts unilaterally with little concern for the

         16  opinion of those whose lives are most affected by

         17  its decisions. The only recourse available to

         18  community boards and civic groups is to bring BSA

         19  into court to challenge its decisions which can cost

         20  hundreds of thousands of dollars in legal fees.

         21                 These costly legal expenses often

         22  prevent communities from pursuing challenges of BSA

         23  decisions, which permanently alter the fabric of the

         24  community. While the industry may cite statistics

         25  which suggest that BSA decisions are overwhelmingly
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          2  upheld by the courts, the fact remains that a

          3  limited number of BSA decisions result in court

          4  challenges due to the expenses involved.

          5                 Therefore, it is misleading to assume

          6  that the results of those Article 78 cases, which

          7  have been brought, are reliable predictors of all

          8  Article 78 decisions that could be brought where the

          9  funds were available.

         10                 Finally, no government body comprised

         11  solely of appointed positions should wield this kind

         12  of power, which significantly impacts the quality of

         13  life within this City by unilaterally amending the

         14  zoning laws.

         15                 This bill will reestablish the review

         16  process over variance and special permit decisions

         17  that was previously held by the former Board of

         18  Estimate.

         19                 The City Council now has the

         20  authority, through the Charter's Call-Up mechanism,

         21  to assert jurisdiction over special permits granted

         22  by the City Planning Commission. Currently there is

         23  no type of review for such actions taken by BSA.

         24  This bill would establish a much-needed check on

         25  this agency. It will return power to the community
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          2  by giving elected officials the right of review over

          3  BSA decisions. Preservation of neighborhoods and

          4  quality of life will again be paramount

          5  considerations in Land Use decision-making.

          6                 Madam Chair, after we hear the public

          7  testimony, I would like to read into the record

          8  those community boards and civic and preservation

          9  groups that are in support of the bill. I'll do it

         10  after the public hearing.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: There is a second

         12  piece of legislation we were trying to do a little

         13  while ago that, I'm not sure if anybody is here to

         14  testify on it, but if you aren't or are, if you have

         15  comments on it, that would be great. This is simply

         16  a reporting requirement.

         17                 I think that there is absolutely no

         18  doubt that those of us that have enormous respect

         19  for community boards and the process by which

         20  community boards take, are concerned with the idea

         21  that many times their recommendations are not taken

         22  seriously by the Board of Standards and Appeals.

         23                 I know that when we get a

         24  recommendation here from the community board as part

         25  of the ULURP process, we take their recommendation
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          2  extremely serious. We analyze it, we look at it. We

          3  look at the conditions, we look at the disapprovals

          4  with conditions, and we try to take what they say

          5  into account.

          6                 So, one of the things that actually

          7  Councilman Avella's bill did for me was wanted me to

          8  see exactly how many of the recommendations from the

          9  community boards were turned down, and how many were

         10  approved of.

         11                 I have to tell you, if there is

         12  anybody here from the Administration, I was

         13  extremely disappointed to get a letter from the

         14  Administration basically saying that that would be

         15  too difficult for them to report to the Council,

         16  that the community boards sometimes have nuances and

         17  recommendations that would not easily be categorized

         18  and sent.

         19                 I want to make it clear: we are the

         20  City of New York. The idea that the City of New York

         21  cannot make a simple report to say when a

         22  recommendation from a community board was accepted

         23  or turned down, I find to be an unbelievable,

         24  unbelievable insult to the process.

         25                 So, as we move forward, I would like
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          2  testimony on both pieces of legislation. Clearly

          3  Councilman Avella's bill is the one that, I know a

          4  lot of you were here to testify on, and I truly look

          5  forward to hearing your testimony on that one

          6  especially. I think it is the one that would promote

          7  the most change, and so I think the testimony will

          8  be of the utmost importance.

          9                 So, why don't we start. Shockingly,

         10  the first one is from Douglaston. Can we have,

         11  please, if it's okay, in a group of three, Eliott

         12  Socci, from Douglaston Civic Association. Hey,

         13  Elliot. Ed Jaworski, Madison-Marine-Homecrest Civic

         14  Association. Andrew Berman. Come on up, Andrew, with

         15  us Queens' folks. The other borough folks. I know,

         16   "other borough," I changed it. Other borough folks.

         17                 I'm going to ask the Sergeant-At-Arms

         18  just to do three minutes, but I'm not holding people

         19  to it at this point. Just so they have sort of a

         20  base. Thank you.

         21                 Thank you, gentlemen, for joining us.

         22                 Start how ever you would like,

         23  please.

         24                 MR. SOCCI: Pardon?

         25                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: Start in which ever
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          2  order you'd like.

          3                 MR. SOCCI: Good morning. My name is

          4  Elliot Socci. I'm President of the Douglaston Civic

          5  Association. I am here to speak in favor of a bill

          6  to create City Council review of BSA decisions. To

          7  explain my position, I will cite an issue which was

          8  voted in this Chamber yesterday. That issue was the

          9  dispute on the landmarking of the Douglaston Hill

         10  District.

         11                 The legal justification for the issue

         12  was a technicality. In fact, it was a clerical error

         13  regarding the date of the house, as opposed to the

         14  date of the foundation. This technicality was used

         15  to initiate an attack on the judgment of the

         16  Landmark Commission.

         17                 Now, what does this have to do with

         18  BSA review? Many BSA decisions are contentious and

         19  can easily be brought into question, yet there is no

         20  process to do this within the Administration.

         21                 If one can create an attack on a

         22  Landmarks Commission on a technicality, it is only

         23  correct and appropriate that citizens' communities

         24  should have a process to call for review of disputed

         25  BSA decisions. This process can be formulated to
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          2  allow for review of selected BSA decisions with

          3  under reasonable conditions, meaning not all BSA

          4  decisions need to be reviewed.

          5                 In closing, I support a bill to

          6  create review and oversight by City Council of

          7  contentious BSA decisions. Thank you for your time.

          8                 I would add one more statement. It

          9  was most gratifying to hear the Chairperson's

         10  comments on protecting communities, community boards

         11  and their decisions and their wishes, as opposed to

         12  the closed mind at times of BSA. Thank you.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: Thank you. It's a

         14  byproduct of being the director of community boards

         15  for three years, you know? You get biased.

         16                 MR. JAWORSKI: Ed Jaworski, Executive

         17  Vice President, Madison-Marine-Homecrest Civic

         18  Association in Brooklyn.

         19                 I'm sorry, I only prepared two extra

         20  copies. I don't know if you have them here.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: Why don't we just

         22  have one for the record. How is that?

         23                 MR. JAWORSKI: Okay.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: Okay, if the

         25  Sergeant-At-Arms could help, please, and just grab
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          2  or take --

          3                 MR. JAWORSKI: I gave it to him.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: Oh, you gave it to

          5  them? That's fine. It's for the record then.

          6                 MR. JAWORSKI: My wife and I were

          7  never even familiar with the BSA until about three

          8  years ago. Now we make regular appearances there,

          9  especially regarding Zoning Resolution 73-622

         10  Special Permits. We believe that our presence has

         11  made the commissioners aware of our neighborhood's

         12  concerns about these special permits, in spite of

         13  the fact that our Community Board 15 is a proponent

         14  of them. Zoning committee openly promotes them --

         15  our Zoning Committee at CB 15 openly promotes them

         16  in the face of opposition.

         17                 In fact, for the first time since

         18  April, BSA now posts on its website the fact that

         19  there are new guidelines for 73-622, these

         20  guidelines were never promoted before by BSA. They

         21  were openly promoted and our community Board still

         22  openly ignores them.

         23                 73-622 came into being in January

         24  1998 in just three and a half community boards in

         25  the entire City, all of them in Brooklyn, one of
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          2  which opted out in December. It has to go through

          3  the ULURP process yet.

          4                 Through this past February,

          5  statistics from the BSA indicate that it has

          6  entertained 241 special permits under 73-622

          7  applicants, denying just three. Three out of 241

          8  have been denied.

          9                 The text of 73-622 charges the BSA

         10  with protecting the essential character of

         11  neighborhoods. In September 1999, City Planning

         12  Chair Rose sent a letter to the then City Planning,

         13  to BSA Chair Chen, recommending a permit not be

         14  granted for a specific property because it violated

         15  the law's intent and would change the block's

         16  character. The BSA granted it.

         17                 I challenge this Committee to visit

         18  my neighborhood and tell us that the character has

         19  not been adversely impacted by the proliferation of

         20  McMansions. About two years ago our civic group

         21  collected over 1,200 signatures about the abuse of

         22  73-622. It was dismissed by CB 15 Zoning Committee.

         23  A member of which is an engineer, who was one of the

         24  conceivers of the rule and who stands in front of

         25  the BSA and says you have given me these permits
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          2  before, you have to give me this one, and the BSA

          3  caves in and grants it.

          4                 People are getting discouraged with

          5  the way CB 15 and the BSA has allowed our

          6  neighborhood to be altered, and perhaps in fact

          7  that's the goal. Encourage the real estate

          8  development folks to force out long-time residents

          9  and make room for the 1 million additional increase

         10  in population that the Mayor is projecting. After

         11  all, the BSA is a Mayoral agency following marching

         12  orders.

         13                 In 2004, about the time that

         14  Councilman Avella introduced this 261 measure, the

         15  Municipal Arts Society suggested an analysis and

         16  mapping of variances and permits. It thought that

         17  City Planning and/or the City Council should be

         18  providing some oversight and attention to these

         19  issues involving community character. MAS said a

         20  density alarm should be sounded if the BSA was

         21  allowing too much clustering, and in fact, zoning

         22  was changing without changing a community's

         23  underlying zoning.

         24                 Well, that density alarm is ringing

         25  so loud in my neighborhood that perhaps I've got to
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          2  shout - we need Intro 261 today! Thank you.

          3                 MR. BERMAN: Good morning, members of

          4  the City Council Land Use Committee. My name is

          5  Andrew Berman. I'm the Executive Director of the

          6  Greenwich Village Society for Historic Preservation.

          7  GVSHP is the largest membership organization in

          8  Greenwich Village, NoHo and the East Village,

          9  dedicated to historic preservation and sound

         10  neighborhood planning.

         11                 I'm here today to testify strongly in

         12  support of Intro. 261, which would allow variances

         13  and special permits approved by the Board of

         14  Standards and Appeals to be reviewed by the City

         15  Council and approved, modified or disapproved.

         16                 Under the current system, decisions

         17  of the BSA can only be appealed through the Article

         18  78 process, an expensive proposition, which is

         19  extremely burdensome for most members of the public

         20  and does not truly afford an opportunity for BSA

         21  decisions to be reviewed.

         22                 Speaking from personal experience, my

         23  organization, a membership supported community-based

         24  organization, has never been in a position to file

         25  an appeal of a BSA decision in part because of the
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          2  expenses involved.

          3                 As I understand, before the Charter

          4  Revision of 1989, the Board of Estimate had the

          5  power to review decisions of the BSA. While, the

          6  City Council inherited most of the Board's Land Use

          7  powers, this particular power appears to have

          8  disappeared.

          9                 The City Council has the power to

         10  review special permit decisions by the City Planning

         11  Commission, but retains no such power regarding the

         12  BSA.

         13                 Such a system leaves this body

         14  largely unchecked. Given that it is made entirely of

         15  appointees of the Mayor, this would seem to give the

         16  Mayor a disproportionate degree of power regarding

         17  Land Use decisions and to eliminate the necessary

         18  checks and balances, which are otherwise part of the

         19  City's Land Use governance system.

         20                 The need to provide checks and

         21  balances to the BSA and to review its decisions is

         22  more than theoretical. As someone who has testified

         23  before the BSA in dozens of cases over the last

         24  several years, I can tell you that, in my opinion at

         25  least, the BSA does grant variances and special
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          2  permits without meeting the findings required by

          3  law.

          4                 Given that Intro. 261 will be limited

          5  in its scope to the sufficiency of evidence, this

          6  will allow such decisions of the BSA to be reviewed

          7  and when appropriate, modified or disapproved,

          8  without opening the door to purely subjective

          9  determinations or those based entirely upon

         10  political pressure.

         11                 The neighborhoods represented by

         12  GVSHP, which includes Greenwich Village, NoHo,

         13  Hudson Square and the East Village, receive among

         14  the highest concentrations of variances granted by

         15  the Board of Standards and Appeals anywhere in New

         16  York City.

         17                 We have seen how variances can

         18  utterly transform a neighborhood's character and

         19  scale. Given the incredible power and impact the

         20  granting of variances can have, we feel it is

         21  especially appropriate and necessary that checks and

         22  balances be placed upon the BSA and its decisions be

         23  made subject to review by a separate body.

         24                 I hope that the Council will act

         25  expeditiously to enact this legislation, and assist
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          2  in protecting New York City's neighborhoods from

          3  arbitrary and inappropriate decisions regarding

          4  development and neighborhood character.

          5                 I would like to thank all of the

          6  sponsors of this legislation, and most especially

          7  Council Member Avella, for introducing this bill and

          8  so vigorously championing this cause. Thank you.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: Thank you,

         10  gentlemen, and it will be noted that you actually

         11  stayed within the time frame. So, I appreciate it.

         12  Thank you very much.

         13                 Council Member Sears, we voted out an

         14  agenda from the Land Use Committee that was sent up

         15  by the subcommittees; how do you vote?

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS: I vote aye on

         17  all.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: Thank you.

         19                 Okay, next we have another Douglaston

         20  Civic Association and Community Board 11 member,

         21  Joseph Hellman. Hi, Joe. Daniel McCalla, from The

         22  Four Borough Neighborhood Preservation Alliance; and

         23  Walter Mugdan from Westmoreland Association.

         24                 Gentlemen, we welcome you to the Land

         25  Use Committee. And if you'd like to start? Whoever
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          2  wants to start, please do so. Yes, if the light is

          3  off, it's actually working.

          4                 Is your light off or on?

          5                 MR. HELLMAN: It's off.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: It's off. Can you

          7  just speak a little louder into the microphone

          8  maybe?

          9                 It's not working, sir. We want to

         10  make sure that Crosswalks gets it right, so they're

         11  telling me they can't hear you.

         12                 MR. HELLMAN: Should I start over

         13  again?

         14                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: You should start

         15  over again. Sorry.

         16                 MR. HELLMAN: My name is Joseph

         17  Hellman, and I'm a member of Queens Community Board

         18  11, Secretary of the Douglaston Civic Association

         19  and Director of The Four Borough Neighborhood

         20  Preservation Alliance. In my experience with the

         21  Board of Standards and Appeals, I have found that

         22  property owners requesting a variance for hardship

         23  usually receive relief apparently just for showing

         24  up at the meeting.

         25                 Hardship is often considered the
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          2  slightest slope in the property, or a property

          3  irregularity that it is not a perfect rectangle. The

          4  relief grant is granted without adequate

          5  consideration for neighborhood impact. So, I support

          6  the oversight of BSA decisions. Thank you.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: Thank you, sir.

          8                 MR. McCALLA: My name is Daniel

          9  McCalla, a resident of Fort Greene, Brooklyn. I'm a

         10  member of The Four Borough Neighborhood Preservation

         11  Alliance, Clermont/Green Avenue Block Association,

         12  and Community Board 2 of Brooklyn Traffic Committee.

         13  I am here to testify in support of Intro. 261.

         14                 I don't want to repeat what has

         15  already been said, but here is an example of how the

         16  Board of Standards and Appeals is kind of out of

         17  control.

         18                 Back in 2005, a BSA application came

         19  before the Board, and our Chairwoman said, "please

         20  be advised this is a BSA application, your vote

         21  doesn't really count." Later on when my Councilwoman

         22  testified at the BSA, her testimony was ignored. She

         23  was ranting in the Council Chamber, saying we have

         24  to do something about the Board of Standards and

         25  Appeals.
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          2                 You know, my neighborhood is going

          3  under a contextual zoning application and a Board

          4  member was still under the impression that if we

          5  take a certain property out of the application, we

          6  get a recommendation because it will go to BSA. I

          7  had to point out to him, your recommendation does

          8  not count. It's only a recommendation. When CB 2

          9  makes a recommendation, it's ignored.

         10                 CB 15, on the other hand, is a whole

         11  different story. So, I think Intro. 262 will

         12  hopefully restore balance regard to Council powers

         13  over Land Use. Thank you.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: Thank you, sir.

         15                 MR. MUGDAN: Thank you. My name is

         16  Walter Mugdan. I'm President of the Westmoreland

         17  Association in Northeastern Queens, in the

         18  Littleneck part of Queens. We also enthusiastically

         19  Intro. 261 for the reasons that have been mentioned

         20  by other members of the panels here, but let me add

         21  the following.

         22                 I can't imagine any reason why you

         23  ladies and gentlemen of the Council, who are our

         24  elected representatives, would not wish to ensure

         25  that you have the ability to maintain the integrity
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          2  of your own zoning decisions.

          3                 Earlier it was mentioned that there

          4  is an appeal mechanism from a BSA decision, that is

          5  the Article 78 mechanism. My Association has brought

          6  such an Article 78 from a BSA decision and we lost,

          7  and we lost correctly, I have to admit, even though

          8  we took the fight at great expense. But the reason

          9  we lost is because in an Article 78 proceeding, the

         10  fundamental question for the Court is, did the BSA

         11  follow correctly its own procedures? And as long as

         12  the BSA follows correctly its own procedures, its

         13  decision will almost invariably be supported in an

         14  Article 78. There is no real substantive review

         15  because there are no real substantive standards,

         16  other than the very vague standard of hardship,

         17  which over the years the BSA, by its own decisions,

         18  has decided a way, almost anything is a hardship, as

         19  Joe Hellman mentioned.

         20                 So, the presence or the availability

         21  of an Article 78 appeal mechanism is basically no

         22  mechanism. It simply ensures that the procedural

         23  steps will have been taken correctly, but it does

         24  not ensure in any way, shape or form, that your

         25  decisions, ladies and gentlemen of the Council, that
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          2  you make in setting the zoning rules, are faithfully

          3  interpreted and applied by the BSA.

          4                 So, I can't imagine any reason why

          5  you would not wish to have the ability, not the

          6  obligation but the ability to reach in from time to

          7  time and look at a BSA decision and say this is one

          8  where we think the BSA made a mistake. This is one

          9  that we'll overturn. And that's an appeal mechanism

         10  that is far more available because it uses the

         11  political process that the City Charter provides,

         12  and that the democratic structures that we have

         13  provide, and it allows you to do what you should do,

         14  which is to ensure that your own decisions on zoning

         15  and on Land Use are faithfully carried out, and in

         16  doing so you'll also give guidance back to the BSA

         17  in a way that an Appeals Court never does.

         18                 In the ordinary legal framework, when

         19  an Appeals Court renders a decision, it is giving

         20  guidance down to the district courts, the trial

         21  courts. But here that is not really functionally

         22  happening because in an Article 78 proceeding, the

         23  only guidance that the BSA is ever really getting

         24  is, did you do your procedural work right? If you

         25  take an appeal from a BSA decision, and you overturn
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          2  it in a particular instance, you can give guidance

          3  to the BSA that it can then apply in future

          4  instances so as to more faithfully carry out your

          5  purposes in the zoning legislation.

          6                 Thank you.

          7                 I'd also just add my strong support

          8  of Chairwoman Katz's recommendation for reporting

          9  bill on how Community Board's recommendations are

         10  accepted. Thank you very much.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: Thank you. We

         12  appreciate all the folks that came here. Councilman

         13  Avella is going to have the last word, but I just

         14  want to add that we appreciate all the people that

         15  came here today. We do know that there are lots of

         16  places to be during a weekday and you choose to be

         17  here, and the importance of that does not go

         18  unnoticed. So, thank you for being part of our

         19  process.

         20                 Councilman Avella.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER AVELLA: Thank you,

         22  Madam Chair.

         23                 First of all, I appreciate the bill

         24  that you have introduced and I intend to sign on as

         25  a sponsor.
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          2                 Clearly something needs to be done

          3  about the Board of Standards and Appeals, and I

          4  really find it unfortunate that the Council has not

          5  moved, since most of us have been in office in 2002.

          6  Not only have I proposed this bill, but two others,

          7  that would establish, expand the membership of the

          8  Board of Standards and Appeals and allow for a

          9  two-thirds vote. Either one of these three bills

         10  would make a major change in how BSA operates. And I

         11  think we really have to do something. We can no

         12  longer talk about this. And Madam Chair, I intend,

         13  as I will do with the two other bills, to call up

         14  for a vote and put this on the record, whether it's

         15  the Committee or the full Council, we have to take a

         16  stand, regardless of whether the real estate

         17  industry likes it or not, we have to take a stand on

         18  the fact that the Board of Standards and Appeals is

         19  a totally separate entity of government at this

         20  point, with no control by the City Council or

         21  elected officials or community boards, or civic

         22  groups. It really has to change. And not to belabor

         23  the point, and first of all, I do appreciate all of

         24  the community members that came out here today, but

         25  not to belabor the point, I want to read the names
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          2  of the Civic Associations and the community boards

          3  that have already indicated their support for this

          4  intro, because I think it's important to put this on

          5  the record.

          6                 Queens Community Board 1. Queens

          7  Community Board 4. Queens Community Board 10. Queens

          8  Community Board 11. Manhattan Community Board 2.

          9  Manhattan Community Board 3. Manhattan Community

         10  Board 11. Staten Island Community Board 2, and

         11  Brooklyn Community Board 2.

         12                 In addition to the civic groups that

         13  have testified here today, Udalls Cove Preservation

         14  Committee (phonetic) in Queens. Bay Terrace

         15  Community Alliance in Queens. The Greater Whitestone

         16  Taxpayer Civic Association in Queens. The Beachside

         17  Bungalo Preservation Association of Far Rockaway in

         18  Queens. Democratic Club of Flushing in Queens. Holly

         19  Civic Association in Queens. Forest Hills Community

         20  and Civic Association in Queens. Queens Colony Civic

         21  Association. Littleneck Pines Association in Queens.

         22  Queens Village Civic Association. The North Flushing

         23  Civic Association in Queens. By the way, I do have

         24  testimony from them that I will submit into the

         25  record. The Bayswater Civic Association in Queens.
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          2  The Waldheim Civic Association in Queens (phonetic).

          3  Creedmore Civic Association in Queens. Kissena Park

          4  Civic Association in Queens. Juniper Park Civic

          5  Association in Queens. Bell Harbor Property Owners

          6  Association in Queens. South Park Slope Civic

          7  Association in Queens. The Viniker Hill Neighborhood

          8  Association in Brooklyn (phonetic). Gravesend

          9  Bensonhurst Quality of Life Committee in Brooklyn.

         10  The Bay Improvement Group in Brooklyn. South

         11  Canarsie Civic Association in Brooklyn. The

         12  Olinville Taxpayers and Civic Association in the

         13  Bronx. The Wakefield Taxpayers and Civic League in

         14  the Bronx. East of Laconia Community Association in

         15  the Bronx. Donaco Hill Civic Association on Staten

         16  Island (phonetic). The Lighthouse Civic Association

         17  in Staten Island. Defenders of Historic Upper East

         18  Side, obviously in Manhattan. The Queens Historical

         19  Society; and the New York Industrial Retention

         20  Network, which, as you know, is a Citywide

         21  organization dedicated to preserving the

         22  manufacturing districts in the City.

         23                 Madam Chair and my colleagues. We

         24  clearly have to do something about BSA. It has gone

         25  on for too long out of control, and I appreciate
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          2  your attention and your cooperation today.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: Did you submit that

          4  list for our files?

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER AVELLA: Yes.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: Okay.

          7                 Thank you very much, everybody. I

          8  want to call the final roll call, which is LU 475,

          9  18 in the affirmative, three in the negative.

         10                 LU No. 483, 20 in the affirmative,

         11  one in the negative.

         12                 All others, 20 in the affirmative,

         13  zero in the negative.

         14                 Why do we have an extra vote? Sorry,

         15  all others, 21 in the affirmative, zero in the

         16  negative.

         17                 Thank you very much, this Committee

         18  is adjourned.

         19                 (Hearing concluded at 11:25 a.m.)
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